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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK

Introduction

We have audited the financial statements of Afghanistan International Bank (the Bank), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), the Law of Banking in Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da
Afghanistan Bank.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Afghanistan and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), the Law of Banking in Afghanistan
and other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

« FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during the audit. P TN
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2023

ASSETS

Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank
Balances with other banks

Placements - net

Investments - net

Loan and advances to customers - net
Operating fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Customers' deposits
Deferred income
Lease liabilities
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Capital reserves

Retained earnings

Revaluation loss on debt instruments at FVOCI
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Contingencies and commitments

14

15

17
18

19

2023 2022
---------- AFN in "000 ----------
27,209,283 36,754,123
4,819,385 4,935,205
8,269,656 11,326,593
4,991,227 6,805,988
288,884 872,752
2,662,767 2,880,139
356,504 457,329
26,953 13,802
778,022 970,597

49,402,680

65,016,527

44,926,368 59,950,045
1,998 24,883
172,620 247,634
437,593 1,022,664
45,538,579 61,245,226
1,465,071 1,465,071
434,088 369,069
2,056,035 2,051,465
(91,093) (114,303)
3,864,102 3,771,302

49,402,680 65,016,527

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

2023 2022
Note  =====----- AFN in '000 -----====-
Interest income - calculated using the effective interest method 20 677,792 389,943
Profit on Islamic deposits (10,608) (3,393)
Net interest income 667,184 386,550
Fee and commission income 21 2,613,976 3,204,234
Fee and commission expense 22 (199,665) (251,356)
Net fee and commission income 2,414,311 2,952,878
Income from dealing in foreign currencies 227,304 363,492
3,308,799 3,702,919
Loss on sale of securities (131,833) (268,130)
Credit losses - net 23 (67,970) (369,245)
Finance cost on lease liability (2,261) (2,872)
General and administrative expenses 24 (1,825,301) (1,778,378)
Profit before taxation 1,281,433 1,284,294
Taxation 25 18,953 (275,389)
Profit for the year 1,300,387 1,008,905

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be classified to profit or loss subsequently

Surplus / (Deficit) on debt instruments at FVOCI 29,013 (109,290)
Related deferred tax (5,803) 21,858
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax 23,210 (87,432)

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,323,597 921,473

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (AFN) 43.35 33.63

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

2023 2022
Note  ~=ereeemm- AFN in '000 ----------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before Income Tax 1,281,433 1,284,294
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 274,383 281,377
Amortization 160,950 87,503
Finance cost on lease liability 2,261 2,872
Adjustments for the movement in lease liability - (47,614)
Credit losses - net 67,970 369,245
1,786,998 1,977,677
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Required reserve maintained with DAB (1,996,634) (1,513,272)
Cash margin held with other banks 3,128 10,180
Loans and advances to customers - net 578,475 946,775
Other assets 192,226 666,453
Deferred income (87,901) (148,255)
Customers' deposits (15,023,677) (10,365,565)
Other liabilities (585,071) 816,753
(15,132,456) (7,609,253)
Income tax paid - (2,648)
Net cash flow used in operating activities (15,132,456) (7,611,901)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital work-in-progress (18,460) (251,596)
Acquisition of operating fixed assets (50,546) (12,573)
Acquisition of intangible assets (60,124) (30,638)
Placements (with maturity more than three months) 3,285,559 (2,391,334)
Investments (195,665) 8,720,583
Net cash flow (used in) /from investing activities 2,960,764 6,034,444
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease liability repaid (30,750) (30,880)
Dividend paid (1,230,797) (728,707)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,261,547) (759,587)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (13,433,239) (2,337,045)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 44,490,201 46,827,246
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 27 31,056,962 44,490,201

The annexed notes
R

38 form an mtegral part of these financial statements.
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT 31 DECEMBER, 2023

Revaluation
J loss on debt 3 Retained
Share capital instruments at Capital reserves earnings Total
FVOCI
AFN '000'
Balance at 01 January 2022 1,465,071 (26,871) 318,624 1,821,712 3,578,536

Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year 1,008,905 1,008,905
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Debt instruments at FVOCI

Net change in fair value (109,290) (109,290)
Related tax 21,858 21,858
Total comprehensive income - (87,432) - 1,008,905 921,473
Transferred to capital reserve 50,445 (50,445)
Transactions with owners of the bank
Dividend paid (728,707) (728,707)
Balance at 31 December 2022 1,465,071 (114,303) 369,069 2,051,465 3,771,302

Revaluation
loss on debt Retained

Share capital Thsirtniante ak Capital reserve earnings Total
FVOCI
AFN '000'
Balance at 01 January 2023 1,465,071 (114,303) 369,069 2,051,465 3,771,302

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year 1,300,387 1,300,387
Other comprehensive income, net of tax: .
Fair value reserve (debt instruments at FVOCI) -

Net change in fair value 29,013 29,013

Related tax (5,803) (5,803)
Total comprehensive income - 23,210 - 1,300,387 1,323,597

Transferred to capital reserve 65,019 (65,019) -
Transactions with owners of the bank

Dividend paid - - - (1,230,797) (1,230,797)
Balance at 31 December 2023 1,465,071 (91,093) 434,088 2,056,035 3,864,102

The annexed notes 1 to 38

o

an integral part of these financial statements.
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AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

1. Status and nature of business

Afghanistan International Bank (the Bank) was registered with Afghan Investment Support Agency (AISA) on 27 December 2003 and received
formal commercial banking license on 22 March 2004 from Da Afghanistan Bank (DAB), the central bank of Afghanistan, to operate
nationwide. The Bank obtained Islamic banking license from DAB via letter no. 1863/1890 dated 21 July 2014.

The Bank initially was incorporated as a limited liability company and domiciled in Afghanistan, however, on the basis that the bank capital is
divided into shares the status of the bank is changed from limited liability to Corporation under the Corporations and Limited Liability
Companies Law, this status is effective from 04 May 2016. The principal business place of the Bank is at AIB Head Office, Airport Road, Kabul,
Afghanistan.

The Bank has been operating as one of the leading commercial banking service providers in Afghanistan. The Bank has 15 branches and 1
cash outlets (2022: 15 branches and 1 cash outlets) in operation,

2. Basis of preparation and measurement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standard Board, the Law of Banking in Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank.
Whenever the requirement of the Law of Banking in Afghanistan differs with the requirements of the IFRS, the requirement of the Law of
Banking in Afghanistan and other laws and regulations issued by Da Afghanistan Bank takes precedence.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except investments are stated at fair value.

These financial statements comprise statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income as a single statement, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows and the accompanying notes.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

2.1 A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2021 and earlier application is permitted; however,
the Bank has not early adopted the new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements:
Standard or Interpretation
- IFRS 16 - Covid-19 Related rent concessions (Amendments to IFRS 16)

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
(Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and

The above standards and interpretations did not have a material impact on the financial statements.
2.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards would be effective from the
dates mentioned there against:

Standard or Interpretation Effective date
(annual periods
beginning)

Available for optional
- IFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures Sale adoption/ effective

or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) date deferred
indefinitely

% COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16) 1 April 2021

= Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) 1 April 2021

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 1 April 2021

- 1AS 16 - Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) 1 January 2022
- Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) 1 January 2022
- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 1 January 2022
-] IFRS 17 Insurance Contractsb and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2022
- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) 1 January 2023
- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) 1 January 2023

- 1 January 2023
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)

The above standards, amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any material impact on the Bank's financial statements in
the period of initial application.

vl



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of this financial statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the
annual financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2023.

3.1

3.2

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases’ replaces IAS 17 'Leases’ along with three Interpretations (IFRIC 4 *Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease’, SIC 15 ‘Operating Leases-Incentives' and SIC 27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease"). The adoption of this new Standard has resulted in recognition of a right-of-use asset and related lease liability in connection
with all former operating leases except for those identified as low-value or having a remaining lease term of less than 12 months from
the date of initial application.

For contracts in place at the date of initial application, the Bank has elected to apply the definition of a lease from IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
and has not applied IFRS 16 to arrangements that were previously not identified as lease under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Bank has
elected not to include initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset for operating leases in existence at the date of
initial application of IFRS 16, being 1 January 2019. At this date, the Bank has also elected to measure the right-of-use assets at an
amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for prepaid/ accrued lease payments that existed at the date of transition.

Instead of performing an impairment review on the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application, the Bank has relied on its
historic assessment as to whether leases were onerous immediately before the date of initial application of IFRS 16. On transition, for
leases previously accounted for as operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months and for leases of low-value
assets the Bank has applied the optional exemptions to not recognize right-of- use assets but to account for the lease expense on a
straight-line basis over the remaining lease term. The Bank did not had any finance lease. On transition to IFRS 16 the weighted
average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognized under IFRS 16 was 1.9% per annum. The Bank has
benefited from the use of hindsight for determining the lease term when considering options to extend and terminate leases.

Following accounting policy change has been adopted by the Bank pursuant to IFRS 16:
Leased assets
The Bank as a Lessee

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019, the Bank considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as 'a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the Bank assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are
whether:

a) The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made available to the Bank;

b) The Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the
period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract; and

¢) The Bank has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Ban assess whether it has the
right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Bank recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use
asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the
Bank, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance
of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Bank depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of
the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Bank also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment
when such indicators exist. At the commencement date, the Bank measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Bank’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed),
variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising
from options reasonably certain to be exercised.



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is
remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero. The Bank has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients.
Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets have been included in property and equipment within operating fixed assets
and lease liabilities have been disclosed on the face of the statement of financial position.

Extension options for leases

When the Bank has the option to extend a lease, management uses its judgement to determine whether or not an option would be
reasonably certain to be exercised. Management considers all facts and circumstances including their past practice and any cost that
will be incurred to change the asset if an _option to extend is not taken, to help them determine the lease term.

3 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months maturity
including cash in hand and at ATM, unrestricted balances with the DAB, balances with banks and placements.

4 Financial instruments
3.3.1 Financial instruments — initial recognition
3.3.1.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and balances
due to customers, are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place. Loans and advances to customers are recognized when
funds are transferred to the customers’ accounts. The Bank recognize balances due to customers
when funds are transferred to the Bank.

3.3.1.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their
fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVPL, transaction
costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured at the
transaction price. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price, the Bank accounts for the Day 1 profit or loss, as described below.

3.3.1.3 Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Bank
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net trading income. In those
cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognized in profit
or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognized.

3.3.14 Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Amortized cost, as explained in note 3.3.2.1
FVOCI, as explained in notes 3.3.2.3 and 3.3.2.4
FVPL

The Bank classifies and measures its trading portfolio at FVPL as explained in Notes 3.3.2.2. The Bank
may designate financial instruments at FVPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces
measurement or recognition inconsistencies, as explained in Note 3.3.2.6.



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at amortized
cost or at FVPL when they are held for trading and derivative instruments or the fair value designation
is applied, as explained in Note 3.3.2.6.

3.3.2 Financial assets and liabilities

3.3.2.1 Due from banks, Loans and advances to Customers, Financial investments at amortized
cost

The Bank measures Due from banks, Loans and advances to customers and other financial
investments at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below:
Business model assessment

The Bank determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Bank's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level
of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel.

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed.

How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Bank's
assessment.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case'
or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that
is different from the Bank's original expectations, the Bank does not change the classification of the
remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test

Second step of its classification process the Bank assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify
whether they meet the SPPI test.

*Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortization of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Bank applies judgment
and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and
the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than minimum exposure to risks or volatility in
the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In
such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVPL.



AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

3.3.2.2

3.3.23

3.3.24

3.3.2.5

3.3.2.6

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading

The Bank classifies financial assets or financial liabilities as held for trading when they have been
purchased or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded and measured in
the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net trading
income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net trading income according to the
terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established.

Included in this classification are debt securities, equities, short positions and customer loans that
have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

Debt instruments at FVOCI

The Bank classifies debt instruments measured at FVOCI when both of the following conditions are
met:

The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to
changes in fair value recognized in OCI. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost as
explained in note. The ECL calculation for Debt instruments at FVOCI is explained in Note 33.2.3.
Where the Bank holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to be
disposed of on a first-in first— out basis. On de recognition, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Bank occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of definition of Equity
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is
determined on an instrument-by- instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends are recognized in
profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established, except
when the Bank benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in
which case, such gains are recorded in OCIL. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an
impairment assessment.

Debt issued and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). A compound financial
instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and
have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value under IFRS 9. Management only designates an instrument at FVPL upon initial
recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis:

The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a
different basis; Or

The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy; Or
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The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly
modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no
analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is
prohibited

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at
fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair
value of liabilities designated at FVPL due to changes in the Bank’s own credit risk. Such changes in
fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or
loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVPL is accrued in interest income or
interest expense, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and
qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily
required to be measured at FVPL is recorded using contractual interest rate as explained in Note 2.1.2.
Dividend income from equity instruments measured at FVPL is recorded in profit or loss as other
operating income when the right to the payment has been established.

The bank did not have any financial insturments that requires to be classified under FVPL as at 31
December 2023. ( 31 December 2022: 0)

3.3.3 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Bank acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.
The Bank did not reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in 2023.

3.3.4 Impairment of financial assets

3.3.4.1

%

Overview of the ECL principles

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the
lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss
(12mECL) as outlined in Note 3.3.4.2). The Bank’s policies for determining if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk are set out in Note 3.3.5.

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis depending
on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting period of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. This is further explained in note 33.2.2

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2,Stage 3 and POCI, as
described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Bank recognizes an allowance based on 12mECLs.Stage
1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified
from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Bank records
an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired (as noted below). The bank records an allowance for the
LTECLs.

POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit
impaired on initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and
interest income is subsequently recognized based on a credit- adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognized
or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the expected credit losses.

For financial assets for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the entire
outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced. This is considered a (partial) de recognition of the financial asset.
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3.3.4.2

The calculation of ECLs

The Bank calculates ECLs based on a four probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected
cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between
the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

+PD

« EAD

* LGD

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A
default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been
previously de recognized and is still in the portfolio. The concept of PDs is further explained in note
33.2.2.

The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and
interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities,
and accrued interest from missed payments. The EAD is further explained in note 33.2.2.

The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender
would expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAD. The LGD is further explained in note 33.2.2.

When estimating the ECLs, the Bank considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside, downside (‘average base)). When
relevant, the assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans are expected to be recovered, including
the probability that the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the amount that might be received for selling the asset.

With the exception of credit cards and other revolving facilities, for which the treatment is separately set out in Note 2.6.5, the
maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument unless the Bank has
the legal right to call it earlier.

The mechanics of the ECL method are summarized below:

» Stage 1:

* Stage 2:

« Stage 3:

« POCI

The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The
Bank calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12
months following the reporting date.

These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the
expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original EIR. This calculation is made for
each of the four scenarios, as explained above.

When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Bank records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained above, including the use of
multiple scenarios, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The expected
cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.

For loans considered credit-impaired (as defined in note 33.2.2), the Bank recognizes the lifetime
expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD
set at 100%.

POCI assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. The Bank only
recognizes the cumulative changes in lifetime ECLs since initial recognition, based on a probability-
weighting of the four scenarios, discounted by the credit- adjusted EIR.

Loan commitments and letters of credit

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Bank estimates the expected portion of
the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the
present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down, based on a probability-
weighting of the three scenarios. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to
the expected EIR on the loan. For credit cards and revolving facilities that include both a loan and an
undrawn commitment, ECLs are calculated and presented together with the loan. For loan
commitments and letters of credit, the ECL is recognized within provisions, as disclosed in note 23 to
the financial statements.
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3.3.4.3

3.3.4.4

3.3.4.5

Financial guarantee contracts

The Bank estimates ECLs based on the present value of the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate
relevant to the exposure. The calculation is made using a probability-weighting of the three scenarios.
The ECLs related to financial guarantee contracts are recognized within provisions, as disclosed in note
23 to the financial statements.

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these
financial assets in the statement of financial position, which remains at fair value, Instead, an amount
equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in
OCI as an accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The
accumulated loss recognized in OCI is recycled to the profit and loss upon de recognition of the
assets.

Credit cards and other revolving facilities

The Bank’s product offering includes a variety of corporate and retail overdraft and credit cards
facilities, in which the Bank has the right to cancel and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice.
The Bank does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead
calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Bank's expectations of the customer behavior, its
likelihood of default and the Bank’s future risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or
cancelling the facilities. Based on past experience and the Bank’s expectations, the period over which
the Bank calculates ECLs for these products, is one year for corporate and 3 years for retail products.

The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for revolving
facilities is similar to other lending products. This is based on shifts in the customer’s internal credit
grade, as explained in Note 29.4 but greater emphasis is also given to qualitative factors such as
changes in usage.

The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for credit cards is based on the average effective interest
rate that is expected to be charged over the expected period of exposure to the facilities. This
estimation takes into account that many facilities are repaid in full each month and are consequently
charged no interest.

The calculation of ECLs, including the estimation of the expected period of exposure and discount rate
is made, on an individual basis for corporate and on a collective basis for retail products. The collective
assessments are made separately for portfolios of facilities with similar credit risk characteristics.

Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs,
such as:

GDP growth
Unemployment rates
Consumer price indices

3.3.5 Impairment provision under local regulations

A

Loans and advances to customers

The outstanding principal of the advances are classified in accordance with the Asset Classification and Provisioning Regulation

issued by DAB as follows:
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Nel

i) Standard: These are loans and advances, which are paying in a current manner or at most past due

for the period of 1-30 days, fully secured and is supported by sound net worth, profitability, liquidity
and cash flow of the obligor. Standard assets are sufficiently secured with respect to the repayment of
both the principal amount and interest. An overdraft would be regarded as Standard if monthly
interest payments and other charges are past due for 1- 30 days, and there was regular activity on the
account with no sign of a hard core of debt developing. A standard provision is maintained in the
books of account @1% (31 December 2022: 1%) of value of such loans and advances.

ii) Watch: These are loans and advances which are adequately protected, but are potentially weak. Such

an asset constitutes an unwarranted credit risk, but not to the point of requiring a classification of
Substandard. The credit risk may be minor, and most instances, bank management can correct the
noted deficiencies with increased attention. Further, all loans and advances which are past due by 31
to 60 days for principal or interest payments are classified as Watch. A provision is maintained in the
books of account not less than 5% of value of such loans and advances.

iii) Substandard: These are loans and advances which show clear manifestations of credit weaknesses

that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. Substandard loans and advances include loans to borrowers
whose cash flows are not sufficient to meet currently maturing debts, loans to borrowers which are
significantly undercapitalized, and loans to borrowers lacking sufficient working capital to meet their
operating needs.

Further, all loans and advances which are past due by 61 to 120 days for principal or interest
payments are also classified as Substandard. A provision is maintained in the books of account not less
than 25% of value of such loans and advances.

iv) Doubtful: These are loans and advances which display all the weaknesses inherent in loans and

advances classified as Substandard but with the added characteristics that they are not well secured
and the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently available
information, highly questionable and improbable. The possibility of loss is extremely high, but because
of certain mitigating circumstances, which may work to the advantage and strengthening of the
facility, its classification as an estimated loss is postponed until its more defined status is ascertained.
Further all loans and advances which are past due by 121 to 480 days for principal or interest
payments are also classified as Doubtful. A provision is maintained in the books of account not less
than 50% of value of such loans and advances.

v) Loss: These are loans and advances which are considered uncollectible and of such little value that

their continuation as recoverable facilities is not defensible. This classification does not imply that the
facility has absolutely no recoverable value, but rather it is not practical or desirable to defer making
full provisions for the facility even though partial recover in future may not be entirely ruled out. Loans
and advances classified as Loss include those to bankrupt companies and insolvent firms with negative
working capital and cash flow or those to judgment debtors with no means or foreclosable collateral to
settle the debts. Further, all loans and advances which are past due over 481 days for principal and
interest payments are classified as Loss. This category of loans shall be retained in bank balance sheet
for the period of 6 month for recovery purposes and 100% loan loss provisioning should be made.
After 6 months, they shall be immediately written off with the provisioning made.

The bank has also determine provision for expected credit losses under IFRS 9 which results lower
than provision under Asset Classification Provisioning Regulation, accordingly higher provisions were in
cooperated in the financial statements as disclosed in note 9.5 to the financial statements.

Investments, placements and other assets

The bank has policy of maintaining general provision on placements and investments based on the
credit rating, falling in category A (0%), B (0.50%) and C (1%), entity also determine provision for
expected credit losses under IFRS 9, the financial statements are in cooperated with higher provision
impact resulting from the mentioned methods, as disclosed in notes 7.2.& 8.3 to the financial
statements.
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Off-balance sheet item

General provision of 1% is maintained on bank guarantees and letter of credits on unsecured portion
by cash margin as required in Asset Classification and Provisioning Regulation issued by DAB,
however, entity also determine provision for expected credit losses on off-balance sheet items under
IFRS 9, the financial statements are in cooperated with higher provision impact resulting from the
mentioned methods, as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

3.4 Financial liabilities
The Bank classifies its financial liabilities in following categories.
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held for trading. A financial liability is classified in
this category if incurred principally for the purpose of trading or payment in the short term. Derivatives (if any) are also
categorized as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges

b) Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

These are non-derivatives financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
These are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently stated at amortized cost; any
differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the income statement.

3.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access
at the date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A
market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximizes the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a
transaction.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price - i.e. the fair value of
the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique that uses only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer
the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in
profit and loss in an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank measures assets and long positions at a
bid price and liabilities and short position at an ask price.

Portfolio of financial assets and financial liabilities that are exposed to market risk and credit risk that are managed by the Bank on the
basis of the net exposure to either market risk or credit risk or measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell a net
long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for a particular risk exposure. Those portfolio-level adjustments are allocated to
the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The Bank recognizes transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the change
has occurred.

3.6 Operating fixed assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except for land and capital work in progress
which is stated at cost less impairment, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset.

Subsequent cost are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

M
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful

life as follows:

Building 20 years
Right of Use Assets 1to 8 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years
Computers 3to 5 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fittings 3 to 10 years
ATMs 5 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation is charged on additions during the year from the month they become available for their intended use while no
depreciation is charged in the month of disposal of assets. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These are
included in other income in the statement of comprehensive income.

3.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are capitalized only to the extent that the future economic benefits can be derived by the Bank having useful life of
more than one year. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is charged to income applying
the straight line method.

i Core banking system

The core banking system is capitalized resulting from the acquisition of deposit base of Standard Chartered Bank (SCB)
Afghanistan operations during 2012 which is amortized over the useful life of 15 years.

i) Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortized over their estimated useful life of 3 to 10 years.

iii) License fee

Acquired trademarks and licenses are initially recognized at historical cost and subsequently recognized at cost less
accumulated amortization. Amortization is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of the licenses over
their estimated useful life.

The useful lives of intangibles are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.

3.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment. Non-
financial assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date. Reversal of the impairment losses is restricted to the original cost of the assets.

3.9 Taxation
Current
The current income tax charge is calculated in accordance with Income Tax Law, 2009. Management periodically evaluates positions

taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

od

P
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Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

3.10 Revenue recognition

a)

b)

€

d)

e)

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments, except for those classified as held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognized within "interest income' and " interest expense' in the statement
of comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
consider future credit losses.

Due but unpaid interest income is accrued on overdue advances for periods up to 90 days in compliance with the Banking
regulations issued by DAB. After 90 days, overdue advances are classified as non-performing and further accrual of unpaid
interest income ceases.

Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are recegnized in the period in which disposal is made.

Fees and commission income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided/received.

Fee and commission income that are integral part to the effective interest rate on financial assets and liability are included in
the measurement of effective interest rate. Other fee and commission expenses related mainly to the transactions are services
fee, which are expensed as the services are received.

3.11 Foreign currency transactions and translation

a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the functional currency), which is Afghani (AFN). All amounts have been rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated

3.12 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated using the exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at period-end exchange rates of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in income currently.

The exchange rate for following currencies against AFN were;

1USD 1 Euro

As at 31 December 2022 89.21 94.46
As at 31 December 2023 70.25 76.85

3.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there are present, legal or constructive obligations as a result of past events; it is probable that an out
flow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amounts can be
made. Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognized when intimated and reasonable certainty
exists to settle the obligations.

"
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3.14 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Bank intends to settle either on a net basis or realize the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

3.15 Dividend Distribution

Final dividend distributions to the bank’s shareholders are recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Bank’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting while interim dividend are recognized in the period
in which the dividends are declared by the Board of Supervisors.

3.16 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
or loss that is attributable to shareholders of the Bank by the weighted- average number of shares outstanding during the year.

3.17 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided and recognized as personnel
expenses (salaries and benefits) in profit or loss. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in future payments is available.

Short-term benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

4. Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates and judgments will, by definition,
rarely equal the related actual results. The material estimates, assumptions and judgments used to measure and classify the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities are outlined below:

M
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a)

Impairment losses on financial assets

The banks accounting framework considers both the provision prescribed under local regulations in Afghanistan and IFRS 9.
Therefore, the Bank's level of provision for impairment against financial asset considers the requirements of both regimes.

The measurement of impairment losses under IFRS 9across all categories of financial assets requires judgment, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

The Bank’s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable
inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include:

+ The Bank’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be

measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

* The Bank’s internal credit grading model

* The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis
* Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs to such models.

- Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as GDP growth

* Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL

b

~—

c)

models

It has been the Bank’s policy to reqularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.

The Bank reviews loans to customer balances quarterly for possible impairment and records the provision for possible loan losses as
per the Bank's policy and in accordance with DAB requlations.

Provision of income taxes

The Bank recognizes tax liability in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Law 2009. The final tax liability is dependent on
assessment by Ministry of Finance, Government of Islamic Republic of Afghanistan.

Useful life of property and equipment and intangible assets

The Bank reviews the useful life, depreciation method and residual value of property and equipment and intangible assets at each
statement of financial position date. Any change in estimates may affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property and
equipment and intangible assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortization charge.

#
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5.1

5.2

6.1

7.1

7.2

2023 2022
Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank Note ~  =====eee-- AFN in '000 =-========
Cash in hand 5.1 21,750,111 29,495,667
Cash at Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) 60,148 46,392
21,810,259 29,542,059
Balances with Da Afghanistan Bank:
Local currency:
- Required reserve accounts 5.2 593,948 648,980
- Current accounts 459,026 245,438
1,052,974 894,418
Foreign currency:
- Required reserve accounts 5.2 3,529,595 5,471,197
- Current accounts 816,455 846,449
4,346,050 6,317,646
27,209,283 36,754,123

Cash in hand includes local currency amount of AFN 6,905,117 thousands and foreign currencies : USD amount of AFN
14,841,291 & EUR 3,703 thousands (31 December 2022: local currency amount of AFN 6,789,813 thousands and foreign
currencies : USD amount of AFN 22,695,286 & EUR 10,568 thousands).

Required reserves are maintained with DAB, denominated in respective currencies, to meet minimum reserve requirement
in accordance with Article 3 "Required Reserves Regulation" of the Banking Regulations issued by DAB.

2023 2022
Balances with otherbanks ~ eeeeceeeee AFN in '000 ==========
With Crown Agents Bank 6.1 2,804,596 2,930,375
With other banks 2,014,789 2,004,830
4,819,385 4,935,205

The balances with crown agents bank consist of overnight placements carrying interest rate 4.45% per annum (31
December 2022: 3.5% per annum).

2023 2022
Placements-pet  seeeemeeee AFN in '000 ---====-==-
Placements with banks 7.1 8,276,681 11,344,435
Impairment allowances for losses 7.2 (7,025) (17,842)
8,269,656 11,326,593

These represent USD denominated fixed term placements with financial institutions outside Afghanistan up to a maximum
period of one year (2022: one year) and carry interest at rates ranging from 3.50% to 5.30% (31 December 2022: 2.50%
to 4.70%) per annum.

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank’s
credit rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively. The amounts
presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s rating grades are explained in note 29.4,
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31 December, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 31 December,

Collective Collective  Collective 2022

AFN '000’ AFN '000'  AFN '000’ AFN '000’ AFN '000'
Rating
Performing
Investment Grade 8,276,681 - - 8,276,681 11,344,435
Non-Investment Grade - - - - -
Total 8,276,681 - = 8,276,681 11,344,435
Provision for expected
credit losses (227) - - (227) (1,097)
Provision for impairment losses
as per ACPR - (note 7.2.2) (7,025) - & (7,025) (16,745)
Total (7,252) - - (7,252) (17,842)
Net balance 8,269,429 - - 8,269,429 11,326,593
7.2.2 The provision for expected credit losses on placements as per ACPR amounted to AFN 7,025 thousands (31 December

8.1

8.2

v

2022: AFN 16,744 thousands) which is higher from the one resulting from IFRS 9. Accordingly, the Bank has maintained
higher provision as required under IFRS 9.

2023 2022
Investments - net Note ~  --emeccees AFN in '000 --===---==-
Debt instruments at fair value through OCI:
- Investment bonds 8.1 1,290,479 2,107,340
Debt instruments at amortised cost:
- Investment bonds 8.2 3,706,715 4,711,659
4,997,194 4,711,659
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses 8.3 (5,967) (13,011)
4,991,227 6,805,988

These represent investments in sovereign bonds having maturity ranging from January 2024 to October 2029 (31
December 2022: April 2023 to October 2029) and carrying interest rates ranging from 1.63% to 6.00% (31 December
2022: 1.65% to 6.00%) per annum, These investments are managed by Emirates NBD on behalf of the Bank.

These represent investments in sovereign bonds carrying interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 4.80% (31 December
2022; 1.00% to 4.88%) per annum. These investments have maturity ranging from April 2025 to May 2033 (31 December
2022: January 2023 to October 2030). These investments are managed by Emirates NBD on behalf of the Bank.
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8.3 Impairment allowance for investments

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank's
credit rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively. The amounts
presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank's rating grades are explained in note 29.4.

31 December, 2023

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

31 December,

Collective Collective  Collective Total 2022

Rating = 2= ssseccssesssscesmsccssesesssssosesses AFN '000' ---- i
Performing
Investment Grade 5,044,558 - - 5,044,558 5,866,934
Non-Investment Grade - 42,506 - 42,506 1,088,227
Total 5,044,558 42,506 - 5,087,064 6,955,161
Provision for expected

credit losses (2,272) (1,977) - (4,250) (14,932)
Provision for Impairment losses

as per ACPR - (5,967) - (5,967) (13,011)
Total (2,272) (7,944) - (10,217) (27,943)
Mark to market adjustment on (88,604) (1,266) - (89,870) (136,162)
debt instruments at fair value
through OCI
Net balance 4,955,954 35,273 - 4,991,227 6,805,988

The provision for expected credit losses on investments as per ACPR amount to AFN 5,967 thousands (31 December
2022: AFN 13,011 thousands) which is higher than IFRS 9. Accordingly, the Bank has maintained higher provision

as required as per IFRS 9.

9 Loan and advances to customers - net

Overdrafts
Term loans
Consumer loans

General provision
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses

A

Note

9.1
9.2
9.3

9.4
9.5

2023 2022
---------- AFN in '000 ----====-=
529,523 972,027
51,442 266,887
11,533 17,653
592,497 1,256,567
(245,875) (333,148)
(57,738) (50,667)
288,884 872,752
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9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

2023 2022
Note ~  -=======-- AFN in '000 ----------
Particulars of loans and advances - (gross)
Short term (for up to one year) 592,439 1,243,336
Non-current (for over one year) 59 13,231
592,498 1,256,567

These represent balances due from customers at various interest rates ranging from 5.00% to 12.00% p.a. (31 December
2022: 5.00% to 12.00%) per annum and are secured against mortgage of properties, personal guarantees and pledge of
stocks. These includes loans and advances to Small Medium Enterprises (SMEs) amounting to 0 (31 December 2022: AFN
89,175 thousand).

Term loans carry interest at various rates ranging from 10.00% to 18.00% p.a. (31 December 2022: 5.50% to 18.00%
p.a.) and are secured against mortgage of properties, personal guarantees, lien on equipment, pledge of stocks and/or
assignment of receivables of the borrowers. These include loans and advances to SMEs amounting to 9,547 thousands (31
December 2022: AFN 41,383 thousand) which are also partially backed by Afghanistan Credit Guarantee Foundation
(ACGF) guarantees to the extent defined in agreement with ACGF.

These include payroll loans provided to individual payroll account holders,credit card and employees of corporate
customers having payroll account with the Bank carrying interest rate of 0% to 36% (31 December 2022: 18% to 22%)
p.a.

This represents US $3.50 mn additional general provision maintained by the bank, out this, US $2mn is duly approved by
DAB to be part of tier 2 capital to cover any future unexpected losses.

Allowance for ECL / Impairment allowance for loans and advances to customers

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for categories based on the Bank's
credit rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively. The amounts
presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Bank’s rating grades are explained in note 29.4.

31 December, 2023 31 December,
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2022
------------------------------------- AFN '000' -- S

Gross loan portfolio
Internal Rating Grade
Performing
High Grade 45,325 163,347 - 208,673 7,387
Standard Grade - 293,014 - 293,014 600,139
Sub Standard Grade - 2,696 3,729 6,424 424,285
Non-performing - - 84,386 84,386 224,756
Total 45,325 459,057 88,114 592,497 1,256,567
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses
Opening balance 14,099 30,290 6,278 50,667 1,010,285
Allowances for impairment made
during the year (13,044) (11,468) 35,116 10,604 43,152
Amounts written off during the year - - - o (983,891)
Exchange rate differences and other
adjustments (1,022) (717) (1,794) (3,533) (18,879)
Provision held for expected credit
(AaEAR 3 33 18,105 39,600 57,738 50,667

Net balance 45,292 440,952 48,514 534,759 1,205,900

ol
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The Bank has filed suits for the recovery of loans and advances (principal due) against the defaulted borrowers amounting
to AFN 6,057 thousands (31 December 2022: AFN 268,337 thousands) as at the year end. These suits are pending
decisions at various courts. The Bank’s management is of the view that the aforementioned suits will be decided in its

favor due to sound legal footings.

IFRS 9 expected credit loss amounts to AFN 55,095 thousands as at 31 December 2023. The provision as per ACPR
amounts to AFN 57,738 thousand (general provision: 3,643 and specific provision: 54,095) made under Assets
Classification and Provisioning Regulation (ACPR) is higher than IFRS 9 ECL, therefore, the Bank has maintained the

higher provision under the requirements of IFRS 9.

10 Operating fixed assets

Capital work-in-progress
Property and equipment

10.1 Capital work-in-progress

Advances to suppliers and contractors
Movement in capital work in progress

Opening

Additions during the year
Transferred to operating fixed assets
Transferred to intangible assets
Adjustments/write-offs

Closing

s

2023 2022
---------- AFN in '000 ----------
16,865 7,204
2,645,902 2,872,935
2,662,767 2,880,139
16,865 7,204
16,865 7,204
7,204 169,043
18,460 89,757

(8,799) (5,668)

. (245,928)

16,865 7,204
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2023 2022
11 Intangibleassets @ ceeeeeeee- AFN in '000 -----==---
Computer software, licenses and core banking system 356,504 457,329
Computer License fee Core Banking Total
software System
-------------------------- AFN '000 ---==-==mmsmmmmmmmcmmmeee
Cost
Balance at 01 January 2022 492,539 90,765 542,677 1,125,981
Transfers from CWIP 195,783 50,145 - 245,928
Additions 24,382 6,255 - 30,637
Adjustments / Write offs (443,570) (53,968) = (497,538)
Balance at 31 December 2022 269,134 93,197 542,677 905,008
Balance at 01 January 2023 269,134 93,197 542,677 905,008
Transfers from CWIP - - - =
Additions - 60,124 - 60,124
Adjustments / Write offs - - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 269,134 153,321 542,677 965,132
Amortization
Balance at 01 January 2022 408,353 88,096 337,835 834,284
Charge for the year 19,533 31.773 36,197 87,503
Write offs (note 11.1) (388,031) (86,076) - (474,107)
Balance at 31 December 2022 39,855 33,793 374,032 447,680
Balance at 01 January 2023 39,855 33,793 374,032 447,680
Charge for the year 71,810 52,942 36,196 160,948
Adjustments / Write offs - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 111,665 86,735 410,228 608,628
Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 December 2022 229,279 59,404 168,645 457,328
Balance at 31 December 2023 157,469 66,586 132,449 356,504
Useful life Al 3to10 15 years
years years

W
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12  Deferred tax

Deferred tax (assets) / liabilities arising in respect of:

Provision on investments, placements, loans and advances and other assets
Provision on quarantees and commercial letter of credits

Loss on revaluation of investments held through OCIL

Carry forward taxable losses
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization

12.1

2023

2,963
51,321
13,197

341,669

2022

AFN in '000 --===--=~

6,334
36,442
18,999

401,778

—(382,197) 449,752
26,953 13,802

12.1 Movement in temporary differences during the year
Baiaonlce at l_?.ecognized Recognized Balance at 31 l_!ecognize.d Recognized Balance at 31
Saruary in profit or in equity December in profit or in equity December
2022 loss 2022 loss 2023
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
Deferred tax assets
arising in respect of:
Provision on investments
placements and other assets 5,659 675 - 6,334 (3,371) - 2,963
Provision on guarantees
and commercial letter of credits 7,794 28,648 - 36,442 14,879 - 51,321
Carry forward taxable losses 501,461 (99,683) 401,778 (60,109) - 341,669
Revaluation reserve
on investments (2,859) - 21,858 18,999 (5,802) 13,197
514,914 (70,360) - 463,554 (48,602) - 409,150
Deferred tax liabilities
arising in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreciation
and amortization (244,722) (205,030) - (449,752) 67,555 - (382,197)
(244,722) (205,030) - (449,752) 67,555 - (382,197)
270,192 (275,390) % 13,802 18,953 (5,802) 26,953
2023 2022
13  Other assets Note ----c-e- AFN in '000 -------
Advances to employees 23,013 43,978
Security deposits 455 9,386
Advances and prepayments 272,722 285,322
Interest receivable 160,879 115,771
Advance income tax - net 44,040 43,212
Receivable from credit card service company - CSC 230,882 251,378
Other receivable and advances 47,852 222,367
779,843 971,415
Allowance for ECL / impairment losses (1,821) (818)
778,022 970,597

Med
il
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14

14.1

14.2

14.2

15

15.1

16

16.1

16.2

16.3

2023 2022
Note =~  ----=----- AFN in '000 ==-====cux
Customers' deposits
Local currency:
Current deposits 6,478,796 7,063,425
Saving deposits 78,613 99,222
Islamic deposits 14.1 858,646 105,245
Cash margin held against bank guarantees and letters of credit 106,617 105,361
7,416,055 7,373,253
Foreign currency:
Current deposits 33,135,330 50,325,907
Islamic deposits 14.1 3,502,795 1,328,619
Cash margin held against bank guarantees and letters of credit 4.2 872,188 918,266
37,510,313 52,576,792

44,926,368 59,950,045
This includes current account amount of AFN : 810,466 thousands & Saving deposits: 48,180 thousands (31 December 2022 :
Current account 65,502 & Saving deposits 39,743 thousands).

This includes current account amount of AFN : 2,723,294 thousands & Saving deposits : 779,501 thousands (31 December 2022 :
Current account 349,725 & Saving deposits 978,894 thousands).

This represents cash margin held on the bank guarantees and letter of credit issued by the bank ranging 100%.

2023 2022

---------- AFN in '000 --==-=-=--

Lease liabilities
Opening balance 247,634 323,255
Lease rentals paid (30,750) (30,879)
Finance cost for the year 2,261 2,872
Exchange gain (46,525) (47,614)
15.1 172,620 247,634

Lease liabilities represent the amounts payable relating to the right-of-use assets recognized on account of branches under operating
leases. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are presented in note 33.3

2023 2022
---------- AFN in '000 ----------
Other liabilities
Accruals and other payables 16,629 24,230
Pending outward remittances 16.1 7,943 498,376
Provision for salaries and allowances 90,954 122,772
Witholding taxes payable to MoF 302 84,861
Payable to customers 16.2 20,685 25,733
Others 44,477 84,480
Provision on Financial guarantees 16.3 256,603 182,213
437,593 1,022 665

This includes pending outward remittances of the customers amounting to AFN 7,943 thousands due to uncompleted remittances
process (31 December 2022: 498,376).

This represents amount payables to the customers as a result of their account closure due to compliance issues.

This represents provision ranging from 1% to 100% of provision on unsecured portion of bank guarantees not backed by cash
margin (31 December 2022: 1% to 50%)
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17

17.1

17.2

17.3

18

19

19.1

19.2

2023 2022
Share capital Note ---------- AFN in '000 =-==-=-==-
Authorized 30,000,000 (2022: 30,000,000) ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,465,071 1,465,071
Issued, subscribed and paid-up - 30,000,000 (31 December 2022: 30,000,000)
ordinary shares of AFN 48.84 each fully paid in cash 1,465,071 1,465,071

Pursuant to letter no.918/703 dated 17 May 2010 issued by Da Afghanistan Bank (DAB), the Bank complies with the minimum paid-
up capital requirement for commercial banks in Afghanistan amounting to AFN 1 billion or US $ 20 million.

Horizon Associates LLC and Wilton Holding Limited each holds 46.25% of issued, subscribed and paid up capital while remaining
7.5% is held by International Finance Corporation which is same as per previous year.

During the year, the Bank has paid cash dividend of AFN 41.03 per share (31 December 2022: AFN 24.29 per share) amounting to
AFN 1,230.79 million (31 December 2022: AFN 728.707 million).

Capital reserves

Article 93 Reserve Capital of Corporations and Limited Liability Companies Law of Afghanistan, requires that Bank should transfer 5%
of its profit to Capital Reserve to compensate for future possible losses to the extent such capital reserves reach up to 25% of the
Bank's capital. The Bank's capital reserves as at 31 December 2023 stood at AFN 434,088 thousands (31 December 2022: AFN
369,069 thousands).

2023 2022
---------- AFN in '000 =-==-=-=-=
Contingencies and commitments
Contingencies
Financial guarantees 19.1 881,875 2,666,853

These represent bid bonds and performance guarantees issued by the Bank in the normal course of business. These are 100%
secured against the cash margin and counter guarantees.

The Bank is also facing certain litigations on which no provision is required as per the opinion of legal advisor.
Commitments

(a) Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities 153,591 338,335
(b) Commercial letters of credit 44,605

153,591 382,940

thed

~
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2023 2022
20 Interest income - calculated using the effective interest method Note =  ~-eeceeees AFN in '000 -----=====-
Interest income on overnight deposits 20.1 77,047 36,852
Placements 7.1 463,559 74,849
Debt instruments at FVOCI 8.1 8,770 77,211
Debt instruments at amortized cost 8.2 65,512 83,418
Loans and advances to customers 9 62,904 117,613
677,792 389,943
This represents interest income from overnight deposits with crown agents bank at the interest rate of 4.45% per annum (31
20.1
December 2022: 3.50% per annum).
2023 2022
21 Fee and commission income e AFN in '000 ------==--
Loans and advances to customers 18,601 10,896
Trade finance products 2,818 4,237
Income from domestics/international inward/outward remittances 685,694 885,475
Income from cheque withdrawal charges 34,934 58,705
Customers' account service charges 58,517 76,275
Income from electronic banking 88,667 123,614
Income from guarantee arrangements 21,738 58,924
Income from payroll disbursement services 43,608 52,862
Physical cash management income 1,429,254 1,708,438
Income from pay on ID's services 216,507 221,074
Others 13,638 3,734
2,613,976 3,204,234
2023 2022
22 Fee and commission expense ~ ceceeeeae- AFN in '000 ==========
Bank charges 12,512 13,946
Money service providers charges 127,224 41,966
Asset management fee to investment advisors 10,259 95,724
Expenses from electronic banking 49,670 99,720
199,665 251,356
23 Credit losses

The table below shows the ECL charges on financial instruments for the year recorded in the income statement:

31 December, 2023

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Collective  Collective Collective REgitory el = D;g;r;ber,
Note AFN '000° AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000' AFN '000'

Placements 7.2 35 (905) - (7,024) (7,894) 17,341

Investments 8.3 2,272 (12,954) - 4,279 4,279 (10,852)
Loans and advances 9.5 (14,066) (12,185) 33,322 10,604 10,604 43,152

General Provision 9.4 - - - (5,211) (5,211) 177,553

Other assets 13 - - - 1,177 1,177 (1,191)
Financial guarantees 16.3 - - 65,016 65,016 143,242

Total (reversal) on

impairment/ loss for the year (11,759)  (26,0a4) 33,322 68,840 67,970 369,245

W




30

AFGHANISTAN INTERNATIONAL BANK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023

2023 2022
24 General and administrative expenses Note ~  ---------- AFN in '000 ----------

Salaries, bonus & other benefits 574,941 524,834
Head office building support services 31,639 38,517
Electricity, generator and fuel 85,686 119,009
Repairs and maintenance 49,264 61,494
Information technology cost 134,982 139,101
Security cost 48,270 44,567
Depreciation 10.2 274,383 281,377
Amortization 11 160,950 87,503
Directors fee and their meeting expenses 27,363 28,664
Travelling and accommodation 28,946 21,695
Communication, swift and internet 26,398 35,112
Stationery and printing 28,994 25,833
Legal and professional charges 24.1 176,518 143,493
Auditors' remuneration 9,702 9,776
Marketing and promotion 8,812 6,447
Insurance 121,565 159,003
Subscriptions and memberships 5,324 5,432
Other charges 31,564 46,521

1,825,301 1,778,378

24.1 This includes legal charges amounting to AFN 139,581 thousands (31 December 2022: AFN 37,263 thousands) and professional fee
amounting to AFN 36,937 thousands(31 December 2022: AFN 75,300 thousands).

2023 2022

25 Taxaton  cmmmceeeee AFN in '000 ----------
Current:
For the year 25.1 - -
Prior periods - &
Deferred:
For the year (18,953) 275,389

(18,953) 275,389

25.1 Owing to carry forward tax losses, no provision for taxation has been made during the period.

NCS
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26

Related party transactions

The Bank has a related party relationship with its shareholders, their related entities, directors and key management
personnel. The Bank had transactions with following related parties at mutually agreed terms during the year:

Directors and other key

management personnel Shareholders and its
(and close family members) associated companies
2023 2022 2023 2022

Nature of transactions @ === smmmeeeeeeccccccccmcenee- AFN '000 --
(a) Loans and advances to related parties
Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year 11,943 7,040 176,878 159,997
Loans issued during the year 5,971 - - 176,878
Loans repayments during the year (11,943) (7,040) (25,306) (159,997)
Exchange gain - - - -
Loans outstanding at the end of the year 5,971 - 163,773 176,878
Interest income earned - - 12,201 8,674

Provision for expected credit losses on outstanding balances of loans and advances to related parties amounts to AFN
1,628 thousand (31 December 2022: AFN 1,758 thousand).

The facilities provided to related parties carry mark-up of 7% p.a. (31 December 2022: 7% p.a.) payable on monthly
basis and are secured against mortgage of residential property and personal guarantees of directors and
representative of shareholders of the Bank.

Directors and other key Shareholders and its
management personnel associated companies
(and close family members)
2023 2022 2023 2022
Nature of transactions @ === smmseeeeeecceeceeeeeeeoee AFN '000 --==========mmmmmeamnenae
(b) Deposits from related parties
Deposits at the beginning of the year 49,635 158,172 21,295 4,839
Deposits received during the year 10,057 3,325 279,985 219,324
Deposits repaid during the year (11,805) (134,606) (284,200) (213,142)
Exchange rate difference (165) 22,744 (923) 10,274
Deposits at the end of the year 47,722 49,635 16,157 21,295

Interest expense on deposits = = - =

These represent current account of related parties, which do not carry interest (31 December 2022: 0 ).

Directors and other key

management personnel Shareholders and its
Nature of transactions (and close family members) associated companies
2023 2022 2023 2022
------------------------- AFN '000 -=====smeemcrcnccacanana=
(c) Other related party transactions
Fee and commission income - - 463 59
Directors' fee 21,187 25,597 = =
Rental expenses - - 46,412 30,689
2023 2022
---------- AFN in '000 -=---=----
(d) Key Management compensation
Salaries and other short-term benefits 64,279 80,859
64,279 80,859

Key Management personnel of the Bank include the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finance Officer, Chief Operating
Officer and Chief Risk Officer.
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2023 2022
---------- AFN in '000 ----=-==--
27 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand and at ATM 21,810,259 29,542,059
Balances with DAB (other than minimum reserve requirement) 1,275,481 1,091,887
Balances with other banks (other than held as a cash marain) 4,807,798 4,920,490
Placements (with maturity less than three months) 3,163,425 8,935,765
31,056,962 44,490,201
28 Earnings per share - Basic and diluted
Profit after taxation (AFN '000) 1,300,387 1,008,904
weighted average number of ordinary shares - (number in thousand) 30,000 30,000
Earnings per share - Basic and diluted (AFN) 43.35 33.63
28.1 There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Bank.
29 Financial risk management
29.1 Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial assets Debt Debt Financial Total
(other than investments at  investments at liabilities at
31 December 2023 investments)- At amortized cost fair value amortized cost
amortized cost through OCI
AFN '000
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
Da Afghanistan Bank 27,209,283 ] - “ 27,209,283
Balances with other banks 4,819,385 - - - 4,819,385
Placements - net - 8,269,656 - = 8,269,656
Investments - net - 3,700,748 1,290,479 - 4,991,227
Loans and advances to customers - net 288,884 - - - 288,884
Other assets - 438,247 - = 438,247
32,317,552 12,408,651 1,290,479 = 46,016,682
Financial liabilities
Customers' deposits - - - 37,510,313 37,510,313
Lease liabilities - - - 172,620 172,620
Other liabilities - - - 180,990 180,990
- - - 37,863,923 37,863,923
Financial assets Debt ' Debt Financial
31 December 2022 _ (otherthan o imentsat T oSmentSal o pilities at Total
investments)- At Anicitivad cost fair value amortized cost
amortized cost through 0CI
AFN '000
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
Da Afghanistan Bank 36,754,123 = = = 36,754,123
Balances with other banks 4,935,205 - = s 4,935,205
Placements - net = 11,326,592 - = 11,326,592
Investments - net . 4,698,648 2,107,340 » 6,805,988
Loans and advances to customers - net 872,752 - - - 872,752
Receivables from financial institutions - - - - -
Other assets s 598,085 - o 598,085
42,562,080 16,623,324 2,107,340 - 61,292,744
Financial liabilities
Customers' deposits - * - 59,950,045 59,950,045
Deposit from banks - - - - -
Lease liabilities - 247,634 247,634
Other liabilities - - - 840,452 840,452
- - - 61,038,131 61,038,131

29.2 Financial Risk factors

The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial business and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Bank's aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimize potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial performance.

The Bank’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up to date information systems, The Bank regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes

in markets, products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out by a Risk Management Department (RMD) under policies approved by the Management Board. RMD identifies, evaluates and
manages financial risks in close co-operation with the Bank's operating units. The Management Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as
well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and use of non-derivative financial instruments. The
internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk management and control environment. The most important types of risk are credit risk, l.quidity risk,
market risk and other operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other price risk.

=
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29.3 Credit Risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Bank by failing to
discharge an obligation, Credit risk is the most important risk for the Bank's business; management therefore carefully manages its
exposure to credit risk, Credit exposures arise principally in lending activities that lead to loans and advances, balances with banks and
receivable from financial institution and placements with other banks. Credit risk also arises in off-balance sheet financial instruments, such
as Bank's contingencies and commitments, The credit risk management and control are centralized in credit risk management team of Bank
and reported to the management team and head of each business unit regularly. Balances with DAB are not exposed to credit risk.

29.4 Credit risk measurement

Definition of default and cure

The Bank considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the
borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default,
the Bank also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When such events occur, the Bank carefully considers
whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether
Stage 2 is appropriate.

It is the Bank's policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none of the default
criteria have been present for at least 3 consecutive months. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured
depends on the updated credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk
compared to initial recognition. The bank is observing a probationary period of a minimum of 3 instalments (for repayments which are on a
quarterly basis or shorter) and 12 months (in cases where instalments are on a longer frequency than quarterly) after the restructuring,
before upgrading from Stage 3 to 2.

Credit ratings and PD estimation process

The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation,
addressing both the client’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching default and potential early repayments too.

The EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile, which varies by product type. For amortizing products and bullet
repayment loans, this is based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over the 12 months and lifetime basis. This is also
adjusted for any overpayments made by the borrower. For revolving products, the EAD is predicted by taking current drawn balance and
adding a credit conversion factor which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining limit by the time of default.

To calculate the EAD for a Stage 1 loan, the Bank assesses the possible default events within 12 months for the calculation of the 12mECL.
For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI financial assets, the exposure at default is considered for events over the lifetime of the instruments.

Loss given default

Bank calculates LGD rates and these LGD rates take into account the EAD for historical pool of non-performing loans in comparison to the
amount recovered or realized against such loans. In determine LGDs, the Bank considers all eligible collateral provided the collateral can be
legally enforced. Due to the complexities involved in the Afghanistan regarding collateral realization and lack of historical experience to
demonstrate recoveries through realization of collaterals, the Bank restricts the expected recoveries (to be considered in LGD computations)
based on its historical recovery experiences.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is
subject to 12mECL or LTECL, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The
Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. Significant increase in credit risk is measured by comparing the risk of default estimated
at origination with the risk of default at reporting date. The Bank also applies a secondary qualitative method for triggering a significant
increase in credit risk for an asset, such as moving a customer/facility to the watch list, or the account becoming forborne. Regardless of
the change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, the credit risk is deemed to have increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Measuring expected credit losses - ECL

PD, EAD and LGD are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in earlier
year) on annual basis. This effectively calculates an ECL for each future year, which is then discounted back to the reporting date and
summed. The discount rate used in ECL computation is the original effective interest rate or an approximation thereof,

Forward looking economic information is also included in determining the 12 month and lifetime ECL. The bank has performed historical
analysis and identified key economic variables impacting credit risk and ECL for each portfolio. These economic variables and their
associated impact on PD, EAD and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been applied in this process. Forecast of
these economic variables (the “base economic scenario”) are obtained from external sources on a quarterly basis.
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In addition to the base economic scenario, the management also estimate other possible scenarios along with scenarios weighting. The
scenario weighting are determined by an expert credit judgement. As with any economic forecasts, the projections and likelihoods of the
occurrence are subject to a high degree of inherent uncertainty and therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those
projected. The bank considers these estimates of the possible outcomes. The bank has used base, upside and downside scenarios for its
ECL estimation.

Impairment under local regulations

(i) Over due balances on loans to customers are segmented into four categories as described in note 4.4(b). The percentage of provision
created on such over due balances are as per guidelines issued by DAB and reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each
category. This means that, in principle, exposures migrate between classes as the assessment of their probability of default changes.

(i) Exposure at default is based on the amounts, the Bank expects to be owed at the time of default. For example, for a loan this is the
face value. For a commitment, the Bank includes any amount already drawn plus the further amount that may have been drawn by the
time of default, should it occur.

(iii) Loss given default or loss severity represents the Bank's expectation of the extent of loss on a claim should default occur. It is
expressed as percentage loss per unit of exposure and typically varies by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of
collateral or other credit mitigation.

(b) Other than loans and advances

Other than loans and advances includes balances with other banks and financial institutions and placements with other banks, investments
in bonds and held with DAB and octher assets. Judgments and instructions from the Bank's treasury are being used by the Bank's
management in placing funds with other banks and are viewed as a way to gain better credit quality mapping and maintain a readily
available source to meet the funding requirements at the same time when required.

Further, the Bank has banking relationships with financial institutions which have good international reputation and strong financial standing
and therefore, probability of default by such financial institutions is low.

29.5 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified — in particular, to individual counterparties
and groups, industries and countries.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower, or
groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or
more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the level of credit risk by product and industry sector are approved quarterly
by the Management Board.

The exposure to any one borrower is further restricted by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures. Actual exposures against
limits are monitored daily.

Exposure to credit risk is also managed through analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital
repayment obligations at the time of loan appraisal for initial and subsequent loans.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.
(a) Collateral
The Bank employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The most traditional of these is the taking of security for funds

advances, which is common practice. The Bank implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk
mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:

» Mortgages over residential properties
» Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory and accounts receivable

In addition, in order to minimize the credit loss, the Bank will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment
indicators are noticed for the relevant individual loans and advances.

vl
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29.6

(b) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby letters of
credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit — which are written undertakings by the Bank on
behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions -
are collateralized by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and therefore carry less risk than a direct loan.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of
credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total
unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit
are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments
because longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

Analysis of maximum exposure to credit risk and collateral and other credit enhancements

Maximum exposure

2023 2022
AFN '000 AFN '000
Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet items are as follows:
Balances with other banks 4,819,385 4,935,205
Placements - net 8,269,656 11,326,592
Investments - net 4,991,227 6,805,988
Loans and advances to customers - net 288,884 872,752
Qther assets 438,247 598,085
18,807,399 24,538,621
Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items are as follows:
Guarantees 881,875 2,666,853
Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities 153,591 338,335
Commercial letters of credit - 44,605
1,035,466 3,049,793

The above table represents credit risk exposure to the Bank at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 taking account of any collateral
held or other enhancements attached. For on-balance-sheet assets the exposure set out above is based on net carrying amounts as
reported in the statement of financial position,

The percentage of the maximum credit exposure in balances with other banks, placements, investments and loans and advances are as
follows (in percentage of the total credit exposure):

31 December 31 December

2023 2022
Balances with other banks 25.62% 20.11%
Placements - net 43.97% 46.16%
Investments - net 26.54% 27.74%
Loans and advances to customers - net 1.54% 3.56%

v
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29.7 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit qualities of Bank's financial assets have been assessed below by the reference to external credit
ratings of counter parties determined by various international credit rating agencies. The counterparties for
which external credit ratings were not available, and have been assessed by reference to internal credit
ratings determined based on their historical information for any defaults in meeting obligations.

; Credit Crgdit 2023 2022
Balances with other banks rating rating
agency  --meeeeee- AFN in '000 --====---=-
Counter parties with external credit ratings:
Commerzbank Germany Al Moody's 853,955 1,045,600
Crown agents BB Fitch 2,804,596 2,930,375
Emirates NBD A3 Moody's 292,081 30,366
State commercial bank of Turkmenistan Baal Moody's 339,017 258,392
Bank Centre Credit Caal Moody's 214,043 247,497
Others 315,693 422,973
Credit
Placements Credit rating 2023 2022
rating agency  =mememmee- AFN in '000 ----------
Emirates NBD A3 Moody's 5,375,742 7,897,414
Crown Agents Bank BBB Fitch 702,500 &
Citibank A3 Moody's 2,198,439 2,733,340

A
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29.8

2023 2022
[T p——— AFN in '000 ---====---

Investments - net 4,991,227 6,863,553

Investments held carries various credit rating including AAA to BB. These investments are managed by the
bank through Emirates NBD under investment criteria defined by the Bank. The credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk for under expected credit losses model is based on the Bank's credit rating
grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 as disclosed in note 8.3 to the
financial statements.

2023 2022

Loans and advances to customers- net 288,884 872,752

The credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for IFRS 9 stage categories based on the Bank's
credit rating grades and year-end stage classification as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are
disclosed in note 9.5 to the financial statements.

Other assets
Counter parties 438,247 598,085
2023 2022
Loans and advances-net = =esseeeee- AFN in '000 ----------
Loans and advances are summarized as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired 331,044 845,743
Past due but not impaired 176,705 402,098
Non-performing- Stage 3 84,748 8,723
Gross outstanding 592,497 1,256,564
Less: Allowance for impairment
General provision 9.4 (245,875) (333,148)
Provision held for expected credit losses - note (57,738) (50,667)
(303,613) (383,815)
288,884 872,749
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(a) Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the

IFRS 9.

. SME loans Consumer
Commercial loans JostHe Total

Overdraft Term loans Term loans Term loans

AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
31 December 2023
Regular loans 529,523 - 51,441 11,533 592,497
31 December 2022
Regular loans 972,026 244,906 13,257 17,653 1,247,842
(b) Loans and advances past

due but not impaired

31 December 2023
Past due up to 30 days - - = - 4
Fair value of collateral - - - - -
31 December 2022
Past due up to 30 days 6,669 - 6,669
Fair value of collateral 2,906 - 2,906

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the fair value of collateral is based on valuation techniques commonly used for the
corresponding assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value is updated by reference to market price or indexes of similar assets.

(c) Loans and advances individually impaired

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers before taking into consideration the cash flows from collateral held is AFN 0

thousands (31 December 2022: AFN 0 thousands).

Commercial loans SME loans Sonsimgs
loans

Overdraft Term loans Term loans Term loans Total

AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
31 December 2023
Non-performing - Stage 3 77,659 = 7,051 38 84,748
Fair value of collateral 111,048 - 9,223 = 120,271
31 December 2022
Non-performing - Stage 3 & 8,723 8,723
Fair value of collateral - 150,874 - 150,874

(d) Loans and advances restructured / rescheduled

Restructuring activities include extended payment arrangements and deferral of payments. Restructuring policies and practices are
based on indicators or criteria which, in the judgment of management, indicate that payment will most likely continue. These policies
are kept under continuous review. Renegotiated loans that would otherwise be past due or impaired at 31 December 2023 were AFN
2,496 thousands (31 December 2022: AFN 7,461 thousands).

31 December 2023
Loan amount at

31 December 2022
Loan amount

the time of At year-end at the time of At year-end
rescheduling rescheduling
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
Commercial loans and advances:
Term loans 4,619 2,496 7,630 7,461
Total 4,619 2,496 7,630 7,461

Al
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2023
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33.1

33.2

33.3

33.4

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The
consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments to lend.

Liquidity risk management process

The Bank’s liquidity management process, includes:

- Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. This includes replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers;

- Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;
- Monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and

- Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Monitoring and reporting take the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management. The starting
point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial liabilities and the expected collection date of the financial assets.

Bank Treasury also monitors unmatched medium-term assets, the level and type of undrawn lending commitments, the usage of overdraft facilities and the impact of contingent liabilities such as

standby letters of credit and guarantees.

Funding approach

Sources of liquidity are reqularly reviewed by the Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) to maintain a wide diversification by currency, geography, provider, product and term.

Liguidity ratios
Advances to deposit ratios

Year-end
Maximum
Minimum
Average

Non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk

2023

0.64%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

2022

2.58%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Bank under non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held to manage liquidity risk by remaining contractual maturities at the date of the
statement of financial position. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Bank manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected

undiscounted cash inflows.

As at 31 December 2023

Liabilities

Customers' deposits

Deposits from bank

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total financial liabilities (contractual maturity dates
Total financial assets (contractual maturity dates)

As at 31 December 2022

Liabilities

Customers' deposits

Deposits from bank

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Total financial iabilities (contractual maturity dates)
Total financial assets (contractual maturity dates)

Up to 1 month 1to 3 months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total

AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN 000
44,926,368 - = * - 44,926,368
- . . - 172,620 172,620
44,926,368 z - - 172,620 45,098,988
35,715,787 2,959,684 5,471,364 142,528 2,218,220 46,507,583
70,359,122 - 11,036 - - 70,370,158
12,096 120,958 24,192 60,479 105,530 323,255
11,495 41,942 = e - 52,937
70,382,713 162,400 35,228 60,479 105,530 70,746,350
92,270,733 855,493 8,384,675 9,494,228 2,819,219 113,824,348

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loans commitment include cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank, balances with other banks and receivable from

financial institutions, placements, loans and advances to customers and security deposits and other receivables.

Off-balance sheet items

The dates of the contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities are summarized in the table below:

As at 31 December 2023
Guarantees

Undrawn loans and overdraft facilities
Commercial letters of credit

Total

As at 31 December 2022
Guarantees

Undrawn loans and overdraft facilities
Commercial letters of credit

Total

ok
e

Not later than 1 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
year
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
- 881,875 - 881,875
- 153,591 - 153,591
- 1,035,466 - 1,035,466
2,277,824 389,029 # 2,666,853
338,335 = E 338,335
= 44,605 = 44,605
2,616,160 433,634 - 3,049,793
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Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and

to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill
commitments to lend.

(a) Financial instruments measured at fair value using a valuation technique

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The various fair value levels have been defined as
follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFN '000 AFN '000 AFN '000
Investments in bonds - Fair value through OCI
As at 31 December 2023 ~ 1,29I:IE479 -
As at 31 December 2022 * 2,107,340 -

Valuation technique and key inputs used for investments in bonds were quoted market bid price in active market.
There were no transfers made among various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.

(b) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The table below summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities which are presented on the Bank's
statement of financial position at value other than fair value.

Carrying Value Fair Value
2023 2022 2023 2022
AFN '000 AFN '000
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank 27,209,283 36,754,123 27,209,283 36,754,123
Balances with other banks 4,819,385 4,935,205 4,819,385 4,935,205
Placements - net 8,269,656 11,326,593 8,269,656 11,326,593
Investments - net 3,700,748 4,698,649 3,700,748 4,698,649
Loans and advances to customers - net 288,884 872,752 288,884 872,752
Security deposits and other receivables - net 618,964 598,085 618,964 598,085
Financial liabilities
Customers' deposits 44,926,368 59,950,045 44,926,368 59,950,045
Deposits from bank
Other liabilities 437,593 583,237 437,593 583,237
Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Bank's guarantees 881,875 2,666,853 881,875 2,666,853
Bank's commitments 153,591 382,940 153,591 382,940

The carrying values of these financial assets and liabilities approximates their fair values as at the date of statement of financial position.

(i) Investments:

These include investment bonds classified as held-to-maturity which are measured at amortised cost. The fair value of these investments is
equal to the carrying amount.

(ii) Loans and advances, other assets and other financial liabilities
Fair value of loans and advances, security deposits and other receivables and all the financial liabilities cannot be calculated with sufficient

reliability due to absence of current and active market for such assets and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments, so its
carrying amount is its fair value. The provision for loans and advances has been calculated in accordance with the Bank's policy and

(iii) Off-balance sheet financial instruments

The fair value of the off-balance sheet financial instruments is equal to the carrying amounts.

il
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Capital Management

The Bank's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than the 'equity’ on the face of

balance sheets, are:

(i) to comply with the capital requirements set by the DAB;

(ii) to safeguard the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to be self-sustainable;

and

(iii) to maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored regularly by the Bank's management. DAB
requires each bank to maintain its Tier 1 Capital ratio and Regulatory Capital ratio to be at least 6 % and 12 %

respectively. The Bank is maintaining this ratio well above the required level.

The table below summarizes the composition of the regulatory capital and ratio of the Bank:

Tier 1 (Core) Capital:

Total equity capital

Less:

Intangible assets

Net deferred tax assets

Revaluation reserve on debt instruments at OCI
Profit for the year

Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital:

General reserves as per DAB's regulation, but restricted
to 1.25% of total risk-weighted exposure

Profit for the year

Revaluation reserve on bonds (45%)

Tier 2 (Supplementary) Capital
(restricted 100% of Tier 1 (Core) Capital)

Risk-weight categories

0% risk weight:

Cash in Afghani and fully-convertible foreign currencies
Direct claims on DAB

Others

Total

0% risk-weight total (above total x 0%)

20% risk weight:

Balances with other banks

Others

20% risk-weight total (above total x 20%)

50%b risk weight:
Others
50% risk-weight total (above total x 50%)

&

2023 2022
---------- AFN in '000 ----------
3,864,101 3,771,302
(356,504) (457,329)
(26,953) (13,802)
91,093 114,303
(1,300,387) (1,008,905)
2,271,350 2,405,569
128,135 170,342
1,300,387 1,008,905
1,428,522 1,179,248
1,428,522 1,179,248
3,699,872 3,584,817
21,810,259 29,542,060
5,399,023 7,212,063
792,743 1,020,563
28,002,026 37,774,687
13,096,066 16,279,639
518,175 789,728
2,722,848 3,413,873
549,267 679,778
274,634 339,889
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100% risk weight:

All other assets

Less: intangible assets

Less: Deferred tax assets

All other assets - net

100% risk-weight total (above total x 100%)

Credit conversion factor

0% risk weight:

Undrawn loan and overdraft facilities

Guarantees

0% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 0%)
0% risk-weight total (above total x 0%)

20% risk weight:

Commercial letters of credit

Guarantees

20% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 20%)
20% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 20%)

100% risk weight:

Guarantees

100% credit conversion factor total (risk-weighted total x 100%)
100% risk-weight total (above total x 100%)

Total risk-weighted assets
Tier 1 Capital Ratio
(Tier 1 capital as % of total risk-

weighted assets)

Regulatory Capital Ratio
(Regulatory capital as % of total risk-weighted assets)

Islamic banking

The Bank started Islamic banking operation in November 2015 with following Islamic deposit products.

Qardul Hasana Current Account

7,501,478 9,866,546
(356,504) (457,329)
(26,953) (13,802)
7,118,021 9,395,415
7,118,021 9,395,415
153,591 338,335
217,313 284,726
: 44,605
661,590 2,382,128
: 8,921
132,318 478,210
2,973 s
2,973 -
2,973 -
10,250,794 13,627,387
22.16% 17.65%
36.09% 26.31%

This account is profit-free account specifically designed to meet the requirements of the Bank’'s customers. Account
holders will have easy access to account at any time to meet their personal or business expenses.

Mudarabah Savings Account

This account is designed specifically to meet the requirements of customers who authorize the Bank to invest their cash
deposits. Customers can deposit or withdraw money at any time they wish, and can earn profits on their savings.

o8
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Mudarabah Term Investment Deposit

These funds are accepted with different investment periods. The Bank manages and invests the funds aiming at
realizing the best profit for the mutual interest of the parties,

Below are the figures relating to Islamic banking as at 31 December 2023

2023 2022
AFN '000 AFN '000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Da Afghanistan Bank 3,905,451 776,607
Investments in sukuk securities 498,249 624,470
Loans and advances to customers 41,305 14,844
Operating fixed assets - 9
Other assets 4,664 3,832
Total assets 4,449,669 1,419,761
LIABILITIES
Deposit - current 3,533,761 415,227
Deposit - saving 827,680 1,018,637
Deposit - term deposit - -
Other liabilities 4,371,518 4,813

8,732,959 1,438,677
EQUITY
Share Capital 5,809 5,809
Accumulated losses reserve (24,724) (23,941)
Total equity (18,915) (18,132)
Total liabilities and equity 8,714,044 1,420,545
Total profit income 27,428 10,737
Total profit expense (10,422) (3,319)
Net Profit Income 17,006 7,418
Other non profit income 89,366 9,765
Other non profit expense (13,177) (14,211)
Net non profit expense 76,189 (4,446)
Income from dealing in foreign currencies (7,556) 984
TOTAL INCOME 85,639 3,956
Net provision for expected credit losses 11,427 (4,739)
NET PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 97,066 (783)
General

37.1 Corresponding figures have been reclassified / re-arranged wherever necessary to facilitate comparison in the
presentation in the current year. However, there are no material reclassification / re-arrangement to report.

37.2 The figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest in thousands in AFN.
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